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February 8, 2013

VIA HAND DELIVERY AND EDGAR

Ms. Suzanne Hayes
Division of Corporation Finance
U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission
100 F Street, N.E.
Washington, D.C. 20549
 
Re: M&T Bank Corporation
    Amendment No. 1 to Registration Statement on Form S-4
    Filed January 9, 2013
    File No. 333-184411

Dear Ms. Hayes:

On behalf of our client, M&T Bank Corporation (“M&T” or the “Company”), we are providing the Company’s responses to the comments of the
Staff of the Division of Corporation Finance (the “Staff”) of the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (the “Commission”) set forth in your letter, dated
January 24, 2013, with respect to the filing referenced above.

This letter and Amendment No. 2 (“Amendment No. 2”) to the Registration Statement on Form S-4 (File No. 333-184411) (the “Registration
Statement” or the “Form S-4”) are being filed electronically via the EDGAR system today. In addition to the EDGAR filing, we are delivering a hard copy of this
letter, along with six copies of Amendment No. 2 marked to indicate changes from Amendment No. 1 to the Registration Statement filed on January 9, 2013.

For the Staff’s convenience, the text of the Staff’s comments is set forth below in bold, followed in each case by the Company’s response. Terms not
otherwise defined in this letter shall have the meanings set forth in Amendment No. 2. All references to page numbers in these responses are to the pages of
Amendment No. 2.
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Preferred Share Amendment Proposal, page 53
 

1. We note your response to prior comment 14. Please provide your unbundling analysis for the preferred share amendment proposal itself.
Specifically, address whether there should be separate votes for each series being amended (Series A and Series C) and whether there should be
separate votes for each term being amended (dividend rate and redemption provisions).

Response: The disclosure on pages 54-56, and throughout the Registration Statement where applicable, has been revised in response to the Staff’s comment
to provide that M&T common shareholders will vote separately with respect to the Company’s Series A Preferred Shares and the Series C Preferred Shares
(collectively, the “Preferred Shares”). The Company supplementally advises the Staff that, for the following reasons, it does not believe that the dividend
rate provision amendments and the redemption provision amendments constitute “separate matters” under Rule 14a-4(a)(3) and therefore that the Company
is obligated to provide the M&T common shareholders with the right to separately vote on each of these amendments.

First, the proposed amendments to the dividend rate and redemption provisions represent an integrated package of modifications to the financial terms of
the respective series of Preferred Shares that resulted from extensive negotiations among the Company, the U.S. Department of the Treasury (“Treasury”)
and the underwriters of the Preferred Shares. The integrated package of amendments that resulted from these negotiations ensured that M&T would find it
financially acceptable to maintain the Preferred Shares in its capital structure while simultaneously ensuring that Treasury and the underwriters would be
able to market the Preferred Shares to the public at an acceptable price. As a result, the proposed dividend rate provision amendment and the proposed
redemption provision amendment for each series of Preferred Shares are clearly not separate, but instead are linked and integrated to a single matter
pursuant to which M&T and Treasury found it acceptable to have such Preferred Shares held by public shareholders. Second, both the proposed dividend
rate and redemption provision amendments for each of the Series A Preferred Shares and the Series C Preferred Shares are confined to the section of the
Company’s Certificate of Incorporation, as amended (the “Company Charter”), that solely relate to the terms of the applicable series of Preferred Shares.
This fact strongly supports the finding that the proposed amendments, rather than relating to “separate” provisions of the Company Charter, should actually
be viewed as constituting modifications to a single provision of the Company Charter. Third, the Company believes that any further bifurcation of the
proposed Series A Preferred Shares and Series C Preferred Shares amendments would (1) place undue prominence on these amendments in the document
relative to the merger-related proposals and (2) cause unwarranted and unnecessary confusion to M&T common shareholders as the Company would be
asking its common shareholders to vote on four separate proposals that, in reality, all relate to the what is essentially the same matter.
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For these reasons, the Company believes that its proposed changes represent a sensible and reasonable approach to implementing the intent and
requirements of Rule 14a-4(a)(3) and that it would be counterproductive to read Rule 14a-4(a)(3) to require that a registrant further fragment a
straightforward proposal like the one at issue into four separate voting items.

Background of the Merger, page 62
 

2. Please revise this section throughout to describe the terms initially proposed and changes to the terms during the process, as previously requested.

Response: The disclosure on pages 66-68 has been revised in response to the Staff’s comment.
 

3. Please disclose the name of the “leading international consulting firm” retained by Hudson City in the first quarter of 2012, as previously
requested.

Response: The disclosure on page 65 has been revised in response to the Staff’s comment.
 

4. Please describe the more stringent requirements that bank regulatory agencies had recently imposed for regulatory approval of acquisitions and
whether the Hudson City board believed those requirements would impede or prevent potential transactions with Parties A and B.

Response: The disclosure on page 67 has been revised in response to the Staff’s comment.
 

5. On page 65 you indicate that in making its determination, Hudson City’s board considered, among other things, M&T’s status under the Dodd-
Frank Act. Please revise to explain.

Response: The disclosure on page 67 has been revised in response to the Staff’s comment.

Opinion of M&T’s Financial Advisor, page 79
 

6. We note your response to prior comment 20 and we note that Item 4(b) of Form S-4 requires you to furnish Item 1015(b) of Regulation M-A
information for any opinion materially relating to the transaction. Please tell us how you determined that quantification of the fee was not
required.

Response: The Staff is supplementally advised that our previous letter, dated January 9, 2013, set forth the Company’s rationale as to why quantification of
the fee was not required. However, in light of our previous conversations with members of the Staff, the disclosure on page 90 has been revised in response
to the Staff’s comment.
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Portfolio Restructuring and Other Post-Closing Actions, page 100
 

7. Please expand this section to describe how you plan to restructure the Hudson City mortgage portfolio. In addition, discuss whether you plan to
grow, decrease, or maintain the current magnitude of the Hudson City portfolio going forward, and explain how you intend to execute your plan.

Response: The disclosure on page 102 has been revised in response to the Staff’s comment.

The Merger Agreement

Covenants and Agreements, page 103
 

8. The disclosure you added in response to prior comment 23 explained post-closing actions. Please describe the restructurings that will occur prior
to closing.

Response: The disclosure on page 102 has been revised in response to the Staff’s comment.

*        *        *

If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact the undersigned at (212) 403-1372 or David M. Adlerstein at (212) 403-1363.
 

Very truly yours,

/s/ Lawrence S. Makow

Lawrence S. Makow

Enclosures
 
cc:  Drew J. Pfirrman (M&T Bank Corporation)

 Denis J. Salamone (Hudson City Bancorp, Inc.)
 C. Andrew Gerlach (Sullivan & Cromwell LLP)


